SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 27, 2013
9:06 a.m

9:06: 37 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Meyer called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 9:06 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair

Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair

Senat or Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Senator dick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny d son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Larry Hartig, Conmm ssioner, Departnent of Environnental
Conservation; Ed Fogels, Deputy Conm ssioner, Departnent of
Nat ural Resources; Mchelle Bonnet Hale, D rector, Wter
Quality Division, Departnent of Environnental Conservation;
Senat or Cat hy G essel ; Deant ha Crockett, Executive
Director, Alaska Mners Association; M chael Satre,
Executive Director, Council of Al aska Producers

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Greg Conrad, Executive Director, Interstate M ning Conpact
Conmmi ssi on

SUMVARY
SB 2 | NTERSTATE M NI NG COVWPACT & COW SS| ON

SB 2 was REPORTED out of conmmttee with a "do
pass” recommendat i on and W th previ ously



publ i shed fiscal notes: FNL (DEC), FN2 (DNR), and
FN3 (LAW.

SB 27 REGULATI ON OF DREDGE AND FI LL ACTIVITIES
SB 27 was REPORTED out of conmttee with a "do
pass” recommendat i on and W th previ ously

publ i shed fiscal notes: FN1 (DNR) and FN2 ( ADM .

#sb27
SENATE BILL NO. 27

"An Act establishing authority for the state to
evaluate and seek primacy for admnistering the
regul atory program for dredge and fill activities
allowed to individual states under federal I|aw and
relating to the authority; and providing for an
effective date.”

9: 08: 09 AM

LARRY HARTIG ~ COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF ENVI RONVENTAL
CONSERVATI ON, (DEC) introduced his support staff. He shared
that in crafting the legislation the departnment had
considered the nost efficient use of time and personnel. He
stated that the departnment had |led the charge at noving the
| egislation forward. He noted that seeking prinmacy was a
significant endeavor. He recognized that the departnent
wanted to attract experts on regulatory progranms which
would Iimt work with contractors or non-firnms. He stressed
that an infornmed discussion with the federal governnent
concerning what should be delegated to states would be
necessary in nmeeting the intent of the |egislation.

9:11:49 AM

ED FOCELS, DEPUTY COW SSIONER, DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL
RESOURCES, relayed that in his extensive experience wth
permtting activities for large projects he had noted the
importance of the relationship between the state and the
US. Arny Corps of Engineers (USACE). He said that wetl ands
permtting had been inportant to every project. He believed
that state primcy would be beneficial and would give the
state nore control over the permtting process. He
hi ghlighted that there was not an economc activity in the
state that did not sonehow rely on the wetlands permtting
process.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 2 02/ 27/ 13 9:06 A M



9:12: 51 AM

Vi ce- Chair Fairclough | ooked to Page 4, line 19 of SB 27:

notw t hstanding any other provision of law, take all
actions necessary to receive federal authorization of
a state program for the departnent and the Departnent
of Natural Resources to admnister and enforce a
dredge and fill permtting program allowed under 33
US. C 1344 (sec. 404, dCean Wiater Act) and to
i npl ement the program if authorized

Vi ce-chair Fairclough wondered if the legislature would
have any recourse for not going forward regardless of the
cost of acquiring the program

Comm ssioner Hartig replied that it was inportant going
forward that federal agencies understand that the intent of
the state was to gain primcy. He stressed that statutes
and regulations, as well as personnel, needed to be in
pl ace before the state applied for prinmacy. He noted that
the program had to be conparable to federal I|aw, which
nmeant that the departnent would need to have the positions
funded in the budget. He said that the request in the
current fiscal note would not be enough to fund the
positions; wthout the positions the state would not have a
conplete application to subnmit to the federal governnent.

9:15:29 AM

Vice-Chair Fairclough wunderstood that there would be
approximately 50 new, full-tinme enployees to inplenent the
federal program

Comm ssioner Hartig responded that 49 was the nunber of
people in the regulatory program for the corps. He stated
that he did not believe that the nunber would increase. He
said they did not expect to get the full program from the
corps due to geographic limtations.

9:16:42 AM

Co-Chair Meyer believed that the state takeover of the
program would expedite the permtting process which had
been one of +the biggest frustrations voiced by smal

businesses in particular. He noted that the cost of
inplementing the legislation would be significant. He

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 3 02/ 27/ 13 9:06 A M



appreci ated why the enployees were necessary and why they
should be state enployees rather than contract enpl oyees.
He expressed concern that wunfunded liability could raise
with each new position. He asked if the first 5 needed to
be hired imediately, or if the state could hold off on any
of the positions until the next budget cycle.

Comm ssioner Hartig responded that the 5 positions would be
added to DEC this year, and the next 3 would be added in
two years in FY 15, naking a total of 8 new positions | the
depart nment.

9:20: 09 AM

M CHELLE BONNET HALE, DIRECTOR, WATER QUALITY DI VI SION,
DEPARTMENT OF ENVI RONMVENTAL CONSERVATI ON, spoke to the five
positions in FY 14. She said that one position was a fairly
high level managenent position because the departnment
needed soneone who understood how to coordinate with EPA
and USACE and the different federal service agencies. She
relayed that there were additional two program devel opnent

positions and two capacity building positions. She
el aborated that the program developrment positions were
necessary to conplete the list of tasks necessary to

devel op the application that would be submtted to the EPA
for assunption of the program She explained that the first
task would be to wite a program description of how the
program woul d operate; one of the key conponents would be
determ ning which waters and wetl ands were subject to USACE
oversight and which would be able to be assuned by the
state. She said that the state would have a lot of work to
figure out the cost and benefits of the program describing
what the program would | ook Iike and how it would operate.
She stated that a contractor would work on a gap analysis
on statutes and regulations and would possibly wite
regul ations and draft statutes. She reiterated that the
anount of work would be significant and detail oriented.
She furthered that the capacity devel opnent track of the
| egi sl ation augnented the program devel opnent track. She
expl ai ned that statew de programmatic general permts were
permts that the USACE could issue, and the state could
cooperate with the corps on the issuance of the permts and
then take over managenent of the permts. She said that
the people in capacity developnent positions would work
wth the corps to develop statew de programmtic general
permts which the state would inplenment and then run

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 4 02/ 27/ 13 9:06 A M



9:24: 00 AM

Vi ce-Chair Fai rcl ough wondered about the work/share
agreenent between the state and the USACE

Ms. Hale replied that the work/share programwas simlar to
the relationship the state had wth the Environnenta

Protection Agency (EPA). She said that it could involve a
state enployee sitting at the corps in order to learn how
to run the program and identify efficiencies, and to assi st
the corps with the permt backlog. She asserted that the
col | aborative work/share between the corps and the state
woul d benefit the state in the end.

9:25: 56 AM

Senator O son queried the mning industry's perspective on
t he program

M. Fogels responded that his experience wth smaller
m ning operations revealed a great concern for the future
of the industry.

Senator O son noted that there were a nunber of smal
m ning operations trying to nmake noney in Nonme in a short
period of time. He said that the increase in depressed
m ners was bordering on a social issue in Nome. He wondered
who would be paying for the extra burden to social
servi ces.

M. Fogels said that he had been working closely with the
mayor of Nonme to identify solutions to the probl ens.

9: 30: 26 AM

Senator A son said that the city was at the breaking point
of its public safety constraints.

M. Fogels said that there was in increased appropriation
in the governor's budget request that would extend the
| ength of the DNR position in None.

9:31: 26 AM

Senator O son opined that the streets in None were becom ng
popul ated with vagrants due to the lack of mning activity
after the influx of mners.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 5 02/ 27/ 13 9:06 A M



Comm ssioner Hartig interjected that he could not speak to
the social issues in None, but he recognized the additional
activity in the area due to gold prices. He stated that
di scussions had been held with the mayor of Nome, as well
as the city council, concerning how to maintain order. He
said that the representative from DNR currently in None had
experience with |aw enforcenent, and because DNR was a
regul atory agency, was being granted sonme police authority.

Senator O son expressed concern that having too many new
people in the community could tax the social and essenti al
servi ces beyond the community's capabilities.

9:33: 53 AM

Co-Chair Kelly expressed support for streamining the
permtting process. He understood the one of DNR s m ssions
was to nmake it so businesses could operate in the state
wi thout the "ridiculous hindrances” that were currently
seen throughout the permtting process. He encouraged the
commttee to pass the bill out of commttee with the
publ i shed fiscal notes.

9:34:51 AM

Co-Chair Kelly MOVED to REPORT SB 27 out of conmittee with
i ndi vidual recommendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being NO OBJECTIQON, it was so ordered.

SB 27 was REPORTED out of conmittee with a "do pass”
recommendation and with previously published fiscal notes:
FN1 (DNR) and FN2 (ADM .

9:36: 14 AM
AT EASE

9:38: 26 AM
RECONVENED

#sb2
SENATE BI LL NO 2

"An Act enacting the Interstate Mning Conpact and
relating to the conpact; relating to the Interstate
Mning Comm ssion; and providing for an effective
date."

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 6 02/ 27/ 13 9:06 A M



9:39: 01 AM

SENATOR CATHY G ESSEL, stated that SB 2 would all ow Al aska
to become a full nenber of the Interstate M ning Conpact
Comm ssion (I MCC). She explained that full nenbership would
give the governor an active vote which would give the state
a broader voice on mning discussions at the national
| evel . She shared that the IMCC was a coalition of mning
states that join together to represent natural resource
devel opnment and environnmental protection as it related to
m ning. She furthered that there were currently 19 nenber
states and that Alaska was one of 6 associate nenber
states. She said that the |IMXC recognized the basic
i nportance of the mning industry and the essential bal ance
between the country's need for mnerals and the protection
of the environnment. She noted the various elenents of the
conpact found in the bill. She spoke to the fiscal note,
and stated that the dues were based on the anount of
mnerals that were produced in each state. She pointed out
that the highest dues were paid in Wst Virginia and that
Al aska could experience annual dues of approximately
$35, 000 per year, not including the provisions for trave

to conpact neetings. She stated that the nenbership could
be cancelled at any tine.

9:42: 06 AM

Senator Hoffrman remarked that it was odd that western
states were only associ ate nenbers.

She explained that the nost prolific mning states to date
had been eastern states. She said that all of the associate
western states were in the process of gaining ful
menber shi p. She added that Mntana was eval uating | oining
t he conpact as wel|.

9:42: 55 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy remarked that the eastern states with full
nmenber shi p were huge coal producers.

9:43:12 AM

Co- Chair Meyer wondered why a state would not join. He felt
the cost of joining the IMCC was mninmal when conpared to
t he benefits of nmenbership in the conpact.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 7 02/ 27/ 13 9:06 A M



Senat or G essel responded that she did not know why sone
states were not yet full nenbers. She noted that associate
menbers had |ower dues. She shared that some of the
associate nmenbers had simlar legislation in place to gain
full menbership in 2013.

9:44: 26 AM

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough wondered when the original conpact
was forned.

Senator G essel replied that the IMCC was forned in Apri
of 1971.

9:45: 53 AM

Senator Bishop wondered if full nenbership would give the
state nore standing against Mne Safety and Health
Adm ni stration (MSHA) overreach

ED FOGELS, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL
RESOURCES responded that full nenbership would include
voting rights for the state to influence the policy
direction of the conpact.

9:47:51 AM

M. Fogels stressed that mning was becom ng increasingly
inmportant to the state; the state now had 7 operating m nes
that were strong economc contributors to the state
econony. He said that the state had a strong regul atory
permtting process and he gave assurances that all of the
active mnes had strong environnmental records. He shared
that the governor had tasked the departnent with crafting a
nore efficient permtting system He relayed that work with
federal agencies was a key part of changing the process. He
asserted that the IMCC would foster a better and nore
productive relationship with the federal governnent. He
reiterated the benefits of joining the conpact. He offered
t he exanpl e of | MCC pushback against the U S. Environnenta
Protection Agency (EPA) concerning hard rock mning bonding
efforts. He shared that he was the governor's current
designee to I MCC and he believed that full nenbership woul d
put the state in a stronger position.

9:51: 33 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 8 02/ 27/ 13 9:06 A M



Vi ce-Chair Fairclough queried the travel line in the fiscal
note of $20, 000.

M. Fogels responded that a key component to nenbership in
the IMCC was attending neetings which required travel to
various |locations. He noted that travel expenses for
associate nenbership had been covered in departnental
budget to this point. He felt that it was inportant to show
a commtnent that in the long-term the state would be
represented at all neetings.

9:52: 50 AM

Vice-Chair Fairclough if DNR had expended all the noney
that was currently assigned for travel in the departnent's
budget .

M. Fogels referred the question to another staff nmenber
wi thin the departnent.

9:53:14 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy understood that Al aska had nore coal than
any other state in the country.

M. Fogels replied in the affirmative.

9:54: 27 AM

DEANTHA  CROCKETT, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ALASKA M NERS
ASSCCI ATION, (AMA) testified in support of SB 2. She said
that it was increasingly difficult for mneral devel opnent
to happen wunder federal <constraints. She believed that
having regulators engaged wth |IMC wuld give the
association a better understanding of how to conmunicate
with federal agencies. She felt that full nenbership would
give Alaska greater access to expertise in the mning
field. She said that mners in the state were having a | ot
of trouble with MSHA issues and oversight and that the | MCC
had been hel pful.

9:57:51 AM

M CHAEL SATRE, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, COUNCIL OF ALASKA
PRODUCERS, spoke in support of SB 2. He said that the state
should join as a full nenber in order to ensure a snooth
permtting process and to join wth other states in

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 9 02/ 27/ 13 9:06 A M



fighting against federal overreach. He said that the
council believed that the state was a leader in permtting
of all resources. He believed that the state's process was
rigorous, science based, transparent and predictable. He
felt that the state needed to go out and benchmark
permtting procedures with other states. He concluded that
a conbi ned voi ce was al ways better than a single voice.

10: 00: 57 AM

GREG CONRAD, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, | NTERSTATE M NI NG COWVPACT
COM SSION (via teleconference), testified in support of SB
2. He stated that Alaska had joined the IMCC as an
associ ate nmenber in 2006. He said that the legislative and
regulatory climate on the federal |I|evel highlighted the
inportance for the state to maintain a strong voice. He
pointed out that IMCC was recognized and respected in
Washi ngton D.C. as an expert on mning issues. He said that
the act of participation and conmtnment of the full nenbers
carried the organization forward in terns of support and
| eadership. He relayed that full nenbership would put the
state in a position that would be favorable for resource
devel opnent. He stated that the state's full nmenbership
woul d be recogni zed by those who worked with the conpact on
a regular basis and would bring about a greater degree of
recognition and influence regarding Al aska' s participation
in the conpact.

10: 05: 43 AM

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough wondered what the dues were for the
associ at e nenber shi p.

M. Conrad replied that Al aska's associate nmenber dues were
$15, 000 annual | y.

10: 07: 03 AM

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough queried the nunber of times the | MCC
net each year.

M. Conrad replied that there were tw formal neetings per
year, with the possibility of other neetings.

10: 07: 43 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 10 02/ 27/ 13 9:06 A M



Senat or Hof fman  wondered  whet her ot her states had
considered joining the associ ate nmenber status.

M. Conrad replied that Montana, Arizona, and |daho were
consi dering associ ate nenber shi p.

Co- Chair Meyer CLOSED public testinony.

10: 09: 42 AM

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough MOVED to REPORT SB 2 out of committee
wi th individual reconmendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being NO OBJECTIQN, it was so ordered.

SB 2 was REPORTED out of conmttee with a "do pass"”
recomrendation and wth previously published fiscal notes:
FN1 (DEC), FN2 (DNR), and FN3 (LAW.

#
ADJ OURNVENT
10:10: 40 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 10:10 a.m

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 11 02/ 27/ 13 9:06 A M



